UNITED STATES OF AMERICA L
BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ;2 .. -

\:
%

In the Matter of
Docket No. 9244}
MSC.SOFTWARE CORPORATION,

a corporaticn. Public Version

Ll e

COMPLAINT COUNSEL’'S PRETRIAL BRIEF
In compliance with the Court’s Second Revised Scheduling Order, as amended on June 11,
2002, Compiaint Counsel submit this Pretrial Brief together with Pretrial Proposed Findings of Fact and

Pretrizl Proposed Conelusions of Law.

P. Abbott MeCartney
Pegey D. Bayer

Michael G. Cowie

Kent E. Cox

Andrew J. Heimert

Karen A, Mills

Nancy Park

Patrick J. Roach

Counsel Supporting the Comiplaint
Bureau of Competition
Federal Trade Commission
Washington, D.C. 20580
(202) 326-2695

Facsimile {202) 326-3496

Dated: June 14, 2002
{Public Version Jane 20, 2002)



TABLE OF CONTENTS

B I S0 T L 0] RSO 1

STATEMENT OF FACTS ... i i o it it it e et ianaans 4

LEGAL ARGUMENT ...ttt ittt iai e e i aas 6
A MSC’s Acquisitions of UAI Nastran and CSA Nastran Vieolate Section 7 Of The

Clayton Actand Section Sof the FTC Act ... ..ot &

1. The Relevant Product Market Is Comprised of MSC Nastran, UAIL Nastran,

and CSANASITAN L ... i 7

a, MSC, UAL and CSAR Based Business Decisions on the Prospect that
Buyers Wonld Substitute Ameong the Advanced Nastran Solvers 10
h. Buyers Shifted or Considered Shifting Between the Advanced Nastran

OIVETS L e e 12
c. Buyers Did Not View Non-Nastran Solvers As Close Substitutes for
Advanced Nasrans ... .. ... . it et e 15
2. The Relevant Geographic Market Is Comprised of the World ........ 19
3 There 1= a Substantial Likelihood the Acquisitions May Lessen Competition or
Tend ToCreateaMenopoly ... oo 20
a The Acguisitions Increased Concentration Significanily ....... 20
b. UAT and CSAR Had Greater Competitive Significance Than Their
Murket Shares Indicate . .. . Lo 22
c. Other Evidence Confirms that M5C Will Have Greater Power to Raise
Price After the Acquisitions ... ... ... .. .. .o i 22
d. The Acquisitions Eliminated UAI and CSAR As Acquisition
Candidates for Other Engineering Software Firms ........... 23
c. Post-Acquisition Evidence Supports MSC’s Inereased Exercise of
Maoncpoly Pewer As a2 Result of the Acquisitions ............ 24
IR MSC’s Acquisitions Satisfy All the Elements for Menopelization and
Attempied Monopolizadon . ........... ... ..., 25
B. The Relevant Market Is Insulated from New Entry ... ..ot 26
C. MSC Will Fail To Show that the Acquisittons Will Enhance Competition by Producing
Cognizable Efficiencios .. oo r it ittt e i iann s 28

D. Divestiture of Cne or More Perpetual, Royalty-Free Licenses to the Current Advanced
Version of MSC Nastran Is Needed to Restore the Competition that Would Have
Occurred Bot For the Aequisitiens ........ ..o o3I

0L 0 10 0 U 34

ii



INTRODUCTTON

On October 9, 2001, the Commission issued its complaint in this matter. The complaint alieges
that Respondent MSC.Software Corporation ("MSC™) unlawfully acquired Universal Anaiytics, Inc.
{(*TAI") and Computerized Structural Analysis and Research Corporation ("CSAR”} 11 1999 1n
violation of Section 7 of the Clayten Act and Sectien 5 of the FIC Act. The complaint alleges that the
acquisitions may substantially lessen competition or lead to a monopoly in vielation of Section 7 of the
Clayton Act und Section 5 of the FT'C Act in the market for advanced versions of a specialized
engineering structural analysis software program known as *Nastran.” The Commission’s Nolice of
Contemplated Relief identified several steps necessary to restore competition, the core of which is the
creation of up to two competitors offering advanced versiens of Nastran.

MSC, UAJ and CSAR had long been vigorous competitors, each offering an advanced version
of Nastran to customers m the aerospace, automotive and other industries.. These competing versions
of the software evolved from a program onginally developed by NASA m the 1960's. The comnmon
otigin of these three Nastran versions made switching between them relatively easy, UAI and CSAR
also took steps to facilitate switching by maintaining data compatibility with MSC Nastran. Little
additional training was required when switching from one Nastran to anether, Legacy data created in
one Nastram generally had been transferrable to another Nastran without the need for substantial
rewriting and clean up. The similarity of the software architecture of the Nastran versions also
facilitated the use of the same complemeniary software products. For these reasons, structural analysis
software lhat does not share the Nastran onigin is a less-cffective competitive constraint on MSC

Mastran than the competing versions from TTAI and CSAR.



MSC had long been the dominant supplier of advanced Nastran, with an estmated 90 percent
of worldwide advanced Nastran revenue. TJAL and CSAR were substantially smaller firms each with
about a five percent share. However, the smaller firms exercised greater competitive influence then
their respective market shares might indicate.

UAL's and CS AR strategy was to target MSC's largest and key Nastran accounts. Both
enjoved considerable success by the late 19905, Nearly all of MSC’s largest accounts either licensed,
or were evaluating or had evaluated, UAT's or CSAR’s Nastrans. Even customers that chose MSC
Nastran otten vsed UAI and CSAR a3 Jeverage to obtain better prices from MSC or to induce MSC
to provide needed enhancements. Customers who licensed UAl or CSJIAR or used them as negotiating

leverage included

Competition among the three Nastrun suppliers led to discounting, falling prices, and increased
development of Nastran as each firm vied to retain and increase its customer base. Consumers, of
course, benetitted trom this competition, especially aerozpace and automotive users, including the ULS.
government defense and space agencies, M3C, of course, disliked the competition. Not only did
MSC saffer price erosion and flat revenue, but the competition undermined MSC's reputation as the
premier Nastran supplier. MSC also feared an even more competitive market it UAl and CSAR wers
acquired by other engineering software suppliers. See CX-3 at MS-0008634.

MEC decided to eliminate this competitive pressure by acquinng UAL and C5AR.

. CX-

2365,



CX— 1 . Similﬂ]'].:f'l-

CX-2. On hoth oocasions,

CX-2632.

CX-446 at

Mo elaborate market analysis is needed to show that these acquisitions were anticompetitive.
The acquisitions wiped out the competitive forces that had driven MSC to lower its prices and to
respond more quickly Lo users' needs for Nastran enhancemerts. Additinnalfy,. the acquisitions
removed UAT and CSAR as acquisition candidates for other software enginecring firins. Without
competition rom UAT and CSAR, consumers are harmed.

In order to restore competition, MSC must be ordered to license, royalty-frze, its advanced
Nastran seftware to up Lo two acguirers capable of replacing immediately the lost competition. The
newcomers or Keensees would pay an up-front lump sum, the amount of which woold be negotiated by
MSC and the licensee, Reyuiring divestiture of only the UAI and CSAR, soflware acquired is |
insufficient because MSC has failed 10 invest in the TTAL Nastrun and CSA Nastran codes and has
chosen to let them become stale or outdated. While both these codes have sat on the shelf, MSC has
continned to npdate and enhance MSC Nastran, including integrating sorne UAT ﬁastran and CSA
Nastran featores, Thus, MSC Nastran today differs substantially from the three rival Nastran versions

competing in 1999. MSC must rescind all paid-vp licenses entered into since the acquisitions where



customers wish to switch to the new Nastran supplier or suppliers. MSC also must afford customers
the ability to “carry” part of their paid-up fees to the new supplier so that the customer does not face
any financial penalty for switching.

In summary, there is overwhelming evidence that MSC’s acguisitions uniawtully eliminated
competition and 1ended to create a monopoly. MSC must now be rquired to enter into a perpelual,
reyalty-free license jur the curment versions of MSC Nastran to restore the competition that would have
occurred but for the acguisitions and 1o elirunate any disincentives for customers to switch to the new
entrants. Additional relief provisions are discussed below, Complaint Counsel will provide expert
lestimony at trial to confirm the approprate product murket, the basis for finding anticompetitive effects,

and the need for the requested reliel.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

MSC is the largest supplier of computer-sided engineening simulation software in the world. In
2001, its annual worldwide revenue was 3236 million. MSC has an estimated 1350 employees located
around the world. MSC has grown substantially throngh acquisition, having acquired six other
engineerng software vendors or resellers since 1998, MSC is a publicly traded company.

In the late 19605, MS5C became a contractor to the National Aeronautics and Space
Administration {"NASA™), for purposes of developing a linear structural analysis software product
called Nastran, which is an acronym for “NASA Structural Analysis System.” AT followed MSC in
the earty 19705 as the NASA contractor responsible for further development of Nastran. NASA

rcleased Nastran into the public domain, after which MSC and then UAT bepan offering enhanced



versions for commercial use. CSAR, fermerly a contract software developer for MSC, also began
offering its own cnhanced version of Nastran for commercial licensing in the 1980s. Both UAT and
CSAR continucd to cnhance their versions of Nastran untl acquired by MSC.

Nastran was one of the first computer-aided enginesring simulation tools developed using the
method of structural analysis known as finite elcment analysis or “FEA.” Software that performs such
analysis, solving mathematical algorithms embodicd in the software, is often referred to as an “FEA
solver.” Finite element analysis can be used to analyze a wide vartety of the physical properties of a
given mechanical desizn, such as for a laanch vehicle, an zireraft or an aviomobile. These physical
properties include strength, stiffness, vibration, bending, heat ransfer and many other characteristics.
Solver software utilizes “linear” or “nonlinear” mathematical algorithms to pecform the analysis,
depending on the inherent physical characteristics of the property being analyzed.

NASA developed Nastran to consolidate a series of different structural mechanical analysis
tools intae a single, flexible general-purpose computer program. NASA belisved that adoption of a
commen solver for use throvghout NASA would facilitate NASA projects, save time and money,
minimize switching costs, aveid the need for training in multiple solvers, and reduce errors in exchanging
data among NASA centers and contractors. NASA also believed that putting Nastraa into the public
domain would increase its usage, promote development, and control costs.

Having been developed for large-scale structures common in NASA projects, Nastran became
the standard large-scale linear structural analysis solver for the acrospace induer;v. The anto indostry
eventually found Nastran well suited for its needs as well. Auwtomobiles, like acrospace structures, are

large-scale structures. Nastran enabied the auto makers te design lighter, quicker, and longer-lasting



autormobiles. Today, Nastran is widely-used for advanced lingar stractural analyses throughout the
acrospace and avtomotive industries. MSC Nastran, as well as UAT Nastran and CSA Nastran during
the period when those programs were being maintained and vpdated, were “advanced™ vemtuns of
Nastran because they were continually enhanced 1o meet the currenl needs for sophisticated tools for
professional analysts in the aeronautical and avtometive industries. Other limited versions of Nastran

software, tailored for less sophisticated needs of mechanical desizners, were also sold by all three firms.

LEGAL ARGUMENT

A, MSC’s Acquisitions of UAI Nastran and CSA Nastran Violate Section 7 Of The
Clayton Act and Section 5 of the FTC Act

Section 7 of the Clayton Act prohibits acquisitions "in any line of commerce or in any activity
affecting commerce . . . tif] the effect of such acquisition may be substantially to lessen competition, or
1o tend to create a menopoely.” 15 TRS.C. § 18. To establish a ¢ 7 violation, Complaint Counsel must
only show that it is reasenably likelv that the acaunisition will cause anticompetitive effects. Seze FTC v,
H.J. Heinz Co., 246 F3d 708, 713 (D.C. Cir. 2001} {"Congress used the words 'may be substantially
1o lessen competition’ . . ., to indicats that its concern was with probahilities, nol certainties.").
"Sectiom 7 does not require proof that a merger or other acquisition [will] cause higher prices in the
affected market. All that is necessary is that the merger create an appreciable danger of such
censequences in the fumre.” Hospital Corp. of Am. v. FTC, 807 F.2d 1381, 1389 (7th Cir. 1936).
Section 5 of the FTC Act alse prohibits scquisitions by firms to monopolize or t;: atternpt to

monopolize the market.



To predict whether an acquisition may substantially lessen competition or tend to create a
monopoly under Section 7 of the Clayton Act, Gl;.lLIITS consider (1) the product market m which to
assess the transaction; (2} the geographic market in which to assess the transaction, and (3) the
transaction’s prebable effect on competition in the product and geographic markets. See FTC v,
Swedish Maich, 131 F. Supp.2d 131, 136 (D.D.C, 2000); FT(C v. Staples, Inc., 970 F, Supp. 1066,
1072-73 (D.D.C 1997}, Underthe FTC Act Section 3 allegation, the Court must additicnally
determine whether M3SC monopolized or attempted to monopolize the market through its acquisitions
of UAL and CSAR.!

1. The Relevant Product Market Is Comprised I;f MS{C Nastran, iJA] Nasiran,

and C5A Nastran

Merger analysis bogins by determining the relevant product market. FTCv. Cardinal Health,

! The Sherman Act provides that it is unlawful o “moncpolize, or attempt to monopolize . . .
any part of the trade or commerce among the several States.” 15 U.S.C. § 2. The Commiscicn can
prosecute viclations of the Sherman Act as “unfair methods of competition™ that are prescribed by
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act. See, e.g., FTC v. Motion Picture Advertising
Serv. Co., 344 118, 392, 394 (1953}, The offense of mﬂnﬂpﬂli'zatinn consists of (1} the possession
of monopoly power in a relevant market, and (2) the willful acquisition or maintenance of that power as
distinguished from growih or development as a consequence of a superior product, business acumen,
or historic accident.” United States v. Grinnell Corp., 384 U S. 563, 570-71 (1966}, The offense
of monopolizatien is complete with the acquisition or maintenance of monopoly power; that power does
not have to be exercised. See Berkey Photo v. Eastman Kodak Co., 603 F.2d 263, 275 (2d Cir,

1979}, cert. denied, 444 1.8, 1093, 100 S.Ct. 1061 (1980} (“Unlawfully acquired power remains
anathema even when kept dormant™). Proof of a changs in price or output in the marketplace is not
requited so long as the conduct in question has resulted in the power to cffect the market. Sze
Easttnan Kodak Co. v. Image Technical Services, Inc., 112 §.Ct. 2072, 2080-81 (1992). The
essential elements of an attempt to monepolize are: {1) specific intent to control prices or destroy
cormpetition in some part of commerce; (2) predatory or anticompetitive conduct directed to
accomplishing the unlawful purpose; and (3) 2 dangerous probability of success. See Spectrum
Sports, Inc. v. MoQuillan, 506 U.S. 447, 113 5. C(. 884, 890-21 (1993).
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Inc., 12 F. Supp. 2d 34, 46 (D.D.C. 1998). "The outer boundaries of a product market are

determined by the reasonable interchangeability of use [by consumers] or the ¢ross-elasticity of derand
between the product itself and substitutes for it." Swedishk Match, 131 F. Supp.2d at 157, guoting
Brown Shoe Co. v. Unired Stares, 370 U5, 204, 325 (1962}, see United States v. E.L du Pont de
Nemours & Co., 351 U.8. 377, 395 (1956). Interchangcahility of usc and cross-elasticity of demand
concern (1) the availability of products that are similar in character or use to the product in guestion and
{2} the degree to which buyers are willing to subatitute those similar products for the product. Swedish
Maich, 131 F. Supp.2d at 157, citing E.l du Pont de Nemaouwrs, 351 U.S. at 393, The market "must

be drawn narrowly to exclude any other product to which, within reasonable variations in price, only a
limited number of buyers will turn,” Times-Picayune Publishing Co. v. United States, 345 U5, 594,
612 n.31 (1953}

Thus, the pivotal question in product market definition is whether an increasc in price for one
product would cause enough buyers to turn to other products so as to make the price increase
unprofitable. See Staples, 970 F, Supp. at 1074. This analytical approach is incorporated in the U.S.
Department of Justice and Federal Trade Commission, Horizontal Merger Guidelines T 1,11
(hereinafter "Merger Guidelines"). The Merger Guidelines take the smallest possibie group of
competing products and ask whether a "hypothetical muﬁﬂpnlist over that group of products would
profitably impose at least a small but significant and nontransitory' [price] increase.” Merger Guidelines
§ 111

Advanced Nastran is the relevant prodoct market. MSC in contracts with customers describes

its M3C Nastran sobver as “an advanced version of the United States government sponsored structural



analysis program known as Nastran.” See, e.g, CX-2390 ot MSC-38 000183 (MSC Corporate
Agroement with ). The relevant product market in this matier is compromised of MSC Nastran,
UAI Nastran, and CSA Nastran. Costomers using an advanced Nastran would tum first to ancther
advanced Nastran in response 1o a small but significant nontransitory price increase. While customers
would eventually turn to other solvers at even higher price increases, the other solvers would not
prevent a small but significant price increase, and therefore are not patt of the relevant product market
At trzal, Complaint Counsel will present expert economic testimony explaining the basis for finding
advanced Nastran as the appropriate product market.

Evidence of actiral anhcompetitive effects—sneh as priee increases or output reductions—cean
obviite ¢xtensive inguiry mto market definition. See Federal Trade Comm’'n v, Indiana Federation
of Dentists, 476 U.S. 447, 460-61 (1986}; accord Tovs ‘R’ Us, Inc. v. Federal Trade Comm’'n,
221 F.3d 924, 937 (market power may be proven through evidence of anticompetitive effects or proof
of relevant market and market concentraton above the relevant threshold); Federal Trade Comm’n v,
Libbey, Inc., No. 02-CV-60, 2002 WL 984208, at *10 {D.D.C., Apr. 22, 2002} (where
Commisgion can show after administrative investigation that there were “actual sustained adverse effects
on competition” then it need not engage in elaborate market analysis). On the other hand, post-
acquisition evidence can be manipulated by the respondent and, thus, must be viewed with suspicion as
discussed below. As we highlight below, there is evidence of post-zcquisition evidence of price
increases and output restrictions that further supports the finding of an edvanced Nastran product

market comprised of MSC Nastran, UAI Nastran, and CSA Nastran.



a. MSC, UAIL and CSAR Baged Business Decisions on the Prospect that
Buyers Woald Substitute A mong the Advanced Nastran Solvers

In this case, there is abundant evidence supporting this relevant product markel. MSC, UAT,
and CSAR all made husiness decisions on the belief that customers would switch between these three
Nastran suppliers in response to relatively small changes in prices. Indeed, M3C acquired UAILand

CSAR precisely becanse customers had switched to UAT Nastran and C5A Nastran in response o
relative changes in prices. For example,
CX-2363,

CX-15 at MSC-02 DO22RE.

CX-06 at MSCO004061.

CX-8 at MS-0003279.

CX-1179.

When recommending the MSC Board the acquisitions, MSC’s management alsc focused

10



o1l
CX-1. Similarly, MSC’s management statcd

CX-2Z. Both

CX-10.
The appropriateness of a4 markel comprised of MSC's, UAI's, and CSAR’s advanced
Nastrans is further established by MSC’s pricing behavior and response te competitive Nastran
devclopment by UAT and CSAR. MSC had lowered prices and offered more Nasiran development in
arder to stem the loss of further business to UAT Nastran and CSA Nastran. Thus, MSC’s pricing was

constrained by UAT and CSA Nasiran.

CX-18.

CxXH4.

CX-14 at MS-0002029.

CX-7, CX-2379. Wihout this consistent competitive pressure from UAT and CSAR, MSC

11



will be able 1o reduce its discounting and raise its prices and will be less inclined o supply Nastran
enhancements needed by its customers.
b. Buyers Shifted or Considered Shifting Between the Advanced Nastran
Solvers
The appropriatencss of the advanced Nastran market i8 reflected in switching among the
advanced Nastrans by users. UTATI had been successful in picking up Nastran business from
by offering lower prices and showing & greater
willingness to provide customization and special features for Nastran. CSAR had been successiul in
secrring business at - with lower prices and offering  greater performance enhancement as well as
at . CSAR also became 's preferred Nastran supplier
during the year prior to the acquisition which offered substantial new Nastran businéss for CSAR.
The record will show that users turned to UFAT Nastran and CSA Nastran as alternatives to
MSC Nastran in response to higher Nasiran prices or when needing advanced Nastran enhancements
not offered by MSC. Following are several examples of the competitive rivalry between the three rivals
involving M3C"s largest Nastran customers:
# _ :From 1992 through 1999,  ased both MSC Nastran and CSA Nasiran. It estimated
that competition in the early 1990s between MSC Nastran and CSA Nastran rednced its
Nastran soguisitions costs by $1 million armually and encouraged substantial technical
improvements in both advanced Nastrans, See CX-835. When seeking a new multi-year
asreement for 1999 and beyond,  offered all its Nastran business to one supplier. MSC
initially lost the account to CSAR but later lowered its price. :
After lowering i1 price, MSC won a new six-
year  agreement for MSC Nastran beginning in 1999, See  Dep. ot 130 to 34,
calculated that its savings under the new contract exceeded 37 million over six yeurs between

MSC’s original quote to its final quote. See CX-B18ar 0338, Following the CSA
acquisition, MSC sought to terminate the existing  contract and induced  to agree to an

12
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increased price for Nastran. CX-1960, UX-814, CX-1959, CX-1957, This prompted one
olficial W write to his colleague, *You said thal if we dropped CSA, MSC would raise their
rates. I said that we had a 6 year contract, and that MSC must certainly have leamed from the
consequences of the last comlrentation we had over rates. You were right, [ was wreng.™ CX-
1958,

® : In 1996, MSC reported * NASTRAN account 15 under severe attack on price
from CSAR and now UAL™ CX-17 However, aftcr the acquisitions concloded that it kad
little leverage in negotiating a new 2000 Nastran contract with MSC. Aninternal  e-mail
orojected that MSC would have “[n]o fear that  will discontinue use of MSC Nastran in near
foture. . ... Few viable suppliers in marketplace espegially in light of MSC's recent
acquisitions.” CX-1226.

CX-2237 at MS(C-162 000192,

CX-2024.
» : MEC provided with an unlimited usage nolti-
site licensc that expired at the end of 1999, At around the time of the expiration, the BILCS
were split up with purchasing several units. The remaining vnit was eventually acquired
by
CX-1300.
CX-2279 at
MSC-38 004399,
L : In 1998, designated CSA Nastran over MSC Nastran as 2
preferred FEA supplier.
X434,

See CK-331.
. : These two companies were contraciors and éubcuntrai:tors
1o develop . They replaced MSC Nastran with UAT Naziran for work on

. UAI had agreed to enhance UAT Nastran to meel the needs of the
when those enhancements were not available m MSC Nastran, See Dep. at 205-08;
Dep. at 106-10.

- : In the mod-1990s, selected TTAT Nasiran over MSC NWastran

t3



and CSA Nastran as its primary solver. Following the acguisitions, however, had to
switeh back to MSC Nastran, paying substantially more for its Mastran usage. CX-2436

. : was in the process of conducting benchmark studies of UAT
Mastran and CSA Nastran prior to the acquisitions.

S CX-2149, CX-2429,

UAl and CSAR were direct threats to take business away from MSC at these accounts
because many of the accounts viewsd UAT Nastran and CSA Nastran as “clone competitors™ with
lower prices and a greater willingness to enhance Nastran to meet their needs at competitive prices.

CX-1at
MS3-0000699; CX-2 at MS-0000735. The competitive pressure from UAT Nastran and CSA
Nastran was sharpest in MSC's largest and key accounts. UAT and CSAR were smaller firms an:i

tended o warget MSC’s largest or key accounts because those accounts offered the greatest potential

Relatively minimal switching costs among the advanced Nastrans made them readily
interchangeable and explains why switching was practical in response to higher prices. The unique
origin of the advanced Nastrans helps mark the boundaries of the markel. Addigonally, the data
compatibility and functional interchangeabilily made swilching relatively easy. UAI had informed one
prospective distdbutor for UAI Wastran that it could tell users that they could transition from M3C
Nastran 10 UAT Nasiran with 2 one-day raining course. CX-1514. Because of the common software
architecture among the advanced Nastrans, ugers need little time to become proficient in another

advanced Nastran.
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. CX-15 at MSC-02 002288 Similarly,
See CX-21,
CX-22,
see CX-26291( document).
In contrast, switching from Nastran to another solver is much more costly when accounting for
training, proficiency, complimentary software, and legacy files.
{CX-1527).

CX-446 at 0013.

CX-2581 at

Additionally, switching away from Nastran to a non-Nastran may not even be possible were the
customer’s partners or industry practice require or prefer the use of Nastran, These “network” effects
are found particularly in multi-party programs such as and the project.
See CX-2106 at MSC-135 001769, Where there are networks, members are unlikely 1o switch in
response 1o & small but significant nontransitory price increase.

e Buyers Did Not View Non-Nastran Solvers As Close Substifutes for
Advanced Nasirans
While MSC will point to occasions where it faced competition from other solvers, non-Nastran

solvers do not pose a competitive constraint in any way comparable to TAI Nastran and CSA

13



Nastrsn. They are less effective competitors because the higher cost of switching from advanced
Nastran to non-Nastran selvers insulates the advanced Nastrans from such competition. Ag the court
noted m Staples, “the mere fact that a firm may be tettned & competitor in the overall market-place
does not ngcessarily require that it be included in the relevant product market for antitrust purposes.”™
Staples, 970 F Supp. at 1075,

All zolvers enjoyv some lock-in effects, but prior to the acquisitions advanced Nastran users
conld switch relatively easily betwaen advanced Nastran versions, ¢compared with switching to a2 non-
Nastran solver. The Nastran solvers’ commen onigin and grehitectyre, data compatibility, and user
miterface ma'ce the Nastrang highly mterchangesble. Switching to a non-Nastran zolver involves
comparatively greater costs accounting for investments lost in reusable legacy models and data, for the
additional training and time needed to become proficient in the new code, and the loss of
complementary software and in-house codes written to work with Nastran, Switching is also less likely
between advanced Nastrans and non-Nastran solvers because of the greater functional differences
between the advanced Nastrans and non-Nastran solvers. The advanced Nastrans developed over
long periods to meet the particular needs of the automotive and acrospace industries. Other codes
have evelved differently to meet the particular needs of other industries.

The substantially higher costs incwrred when switching between a Nastran solver and a non-

Nastran selver than when switching between Nastrans is reflected in a

16



CX-22.
MSC will argue at tnial that the ANSYS solver is a compeling product in the sarme antitrist
product market as the advanced Nastrans. However, the ANSYS solver dogs not pose & competitive

constraint in any way comparable to UAI Nastran and CSA Nastran.

CX-2365.
Furthermore, the record does not show any marked shifting between ANSYS and Nastran solvers on
the basis of price, in sharp contrast to the evidence of shifts between advanced Nastran solvers.

Substaptial switching costs discouraged substitution beyond other advanced Nastrans.

MSC will also point to several niche market segments where ANSYS is the preferred tool

because of its robust non-linear and thermal capabilities.

MSC may alse point to Dassault’s stand-alone Elfini solver, another non-Nastran general

purpose solver, a5 a competitive constraint.

Inn 2001, Dassault and MSC announced the strategic alliance and Dassault’s acquisition

17



ol a nine percant ownership interest in MSC to become MSC's 1argest sharcholder.
See
CX-2282. Thus, Dassault's Elfini is not an independent competitive constraint to MSC Nastran.
MSC also will likely proffer Abaqus, , 4s

another solver that serves as an effective constraint on the advaneed Nastrans.

. Additionally, MSC cventually acgquired

MARC, another non-linear solver

Respondent will also claim that in-house solvers (that is, solvers developed by acrospace and
automotive companies for their own in-house use) would defear any attempt at charging prices above 2
competitive level. However, this argument is not supporied by any facts. The clear wend 15 for firms to

ahandon in-house solvars for commercial selvers.

Even if the market were broadened to include other solvers that may exhibit some limited
competitive interplay with advanced Nastran selvers, the basic analysis would not change. The oltimate
question is not the precise boundaries of the market bt whether the merjzer is Iﬂ;ely to have an adverss
impact on competition. See United States v. General Dvnamics Corp., 415 U.S. 486, 521 (1974)

("the Government is not required to delineate Section 7 markets by ‘'metes and bounds.”™}. Even if the

[



markat were to include other solvers, the fact remains that the suppliers of advanced Nastran within the
broader solver category interact principally with each other. The mergers afford MSC the power 1o
Talse prices ko an extent not possible absent the acquisitions.

At some price point, MSC might iose business to ANSYS, Abaqus, or even in-house solvers.
However, these other non-Nastran solvers are not necessarily in the same relevant product market
simply because in the aficrmath of MSC's acquisition of its closest competitors, consumers consider
them as posaible substitutes. Te make such an assumption is to fall victim to the “Cellophane Fallacy.”
“TA] .m-:}nnp{}list . .. always faccs a highly elastic demand; its products are so overpriced that even
mferior snbstitutes b=min to look good to consumers.” Unifed States v. Eastman Kodak Co., 63
F.3d 95,103 24 (Gr. 1995} ). See, e.g., Pepsico, Ine. v. The Coca Cola Co., 114 F. Supp. 2d 243,

257 {5.D.N.Y. 2000} {the Celiophane Fallacy “cautions that *[the] existence of significant substitution
it the event of further price incraases of even at the current price does not t2ll us whether the defendant
alteady exercises sigmificant market power.”™ (quating Easiian Kodak Co. v. Inage Tech. Serv.

Ine., 504 U.S. 451, 471 (1992)})); Santa Cruz Medical Clinic v. Dominican Santa Cruz Hospital,

No. C93-20613-RMW, 1995 WL B53037, at *10 & n.10 (N.D. Cal., Sept. 7, 1995) (discussing
Cellophang Fallacy in context of geographic market definition} (citing Gene C. Schaerr, The
Ceflophane Fallacy and the Justice Depariment’s Cruidelines for Horizonal Mergers, 94 Yale

L.J. 670, §77-78 (1984)).

2 The Relevant Geographic Market Is Comprised of the World

The second area of inquiry is to identify the "section of the cotmtry,” or geographic markei(z),
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that may be affected by the proposed acquisitions. In this case, the relevant geographic market is likely
the world, although local support may be a2 factor which limits U.S. conswmners from Luming to overseas
suppliers.

3. There Is a Substantial Likeliheod the Acquisifions May Lessen Competition or

Tend To Create a Monopoly

After the relevant product and geographic markets are established, the next step of the inguiry
under Section 7 is evaluating the impact of the acquisition on competition: that is, determining whether
the proposed merger may hurt consumners by factlitating anticompetitive pricing in these markets. To
aid in this predictive ¢ ~termination, courts look first at market concentration and the increase in market
concentration created by the (ransaction, then examine such other factors as the nature of competition
between the merging firms, other market participants, and barriers to entry, The task of predicting the
competitive impact of MSC™s acquisitions of 1TTAT and CSAR is simplified in this case. MSC
expenenced revenue reductions and price etosion due to competition from UAT and CSAR. Without
that competition, MSC is able to raise or maintain its prices and be less solicitous of the needs of
Nastran users for further enhancernents. Complaint Counsel will offer expert opinion testimony at trial

to provide further guidance in analyzing the competitive effects of MSC’s two acquisitions.

a. The Acquisitions Increased Concentration Significantly
Mergers that significantly incrsase market concentration are presumptively unlawful because the
fewer the competitors and the bigger the respective market shares, the greater the likelihood that a

single firm, or & group of firms, conld raise prices above competitive levels. See Hospital Corp. of

20



Am., 807 F.2d at 1389; Mcreer Guidclines, § 2.0. Market concentration may be measured by
determining the market shares of industry leaders or by calculating the Herfindahl-Hirschman Index
("HHT"). Fr{v. PP( Indus., fnc., 798 F.2d 1300, 1503 (D.C. Cir. 1986), F7C v. University

Health, Inc. 938 F.2d 1206, 1211 n.12 (11" Cir. 1991) (HHI is “most prominent method” of
measuring market concentration); Staples, 970 F. Supp. at 1081-82; Cardinal Health, 12 F. Supp.

2d at 53-54; Merger Guidelines, § 1.5.° A merger that results in an HHI over 1800 indicates a highly
concentrated market; it is presumed that mergers producing an increase in the HHI of more than 100
points in such markets are likely to creafe or enhance market power or facilitate its exercise. Merger
Guidelines, § 1.51.

In this case, the combined shares of MSC Nastran (90%), UAI Nastran (3%), and CSA
Nastran (39%) are 100%, reflecting 2 merger to monopoly. The post-merger HHI would be at the
monopoly level of 10,000, This percentage is obviously far in excess of the levels raising a presumption
of iliegality.

Even if the market were to include ANSYS and Elfini, the combined market share of MSC
MNastran, UAIL Mastran, and C5A Nastran raises competitive concern. Concantration among these
firms is high and increased significantly because of the acguisitions. Using this definition, the
post-merger HHE is over 3000, still far above the 1,800 lavel creating a presumption of flegality. In
short, MSC's acquisitions are presumptively unlawful in an advanced Nastran market or a broader

market that may include ANSY'S or even Elfini.

I The HHI is calculated by summing the squares of the market shares of all firms in the market.
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b. UAIL and CSAR Had Grester Competitive Significance Than Their Market
Shares Indicate

While UAI Nastran and CSA Nastran held relatively small market shares, their competitive
significance was greater than their market share. UUAI Nastran and CSA Nastran had a presence in
MSC's largest and key account and were capable of serving large vsers. UAIL's and CSAR’s ability to
scrve MSC’s largest customers was a signal te other customers that UAT and CSAR were viable
alternatives to MSC Nastran. Indeed, firms used the availability of UAT and CSAR as leverage to
sgoure greater discounes from MSC without actually licensing UAI Nastran or CSA Nastran. In
addition, UAI was beginning to undertake new mitiatives to cxpand the use of UAT Nastran

at the time of the acquisition. CSAR was also beginning Lo supply CS A Nastran at
the dme of the acquisition under designation of CS A Nastran as its preferred FEA
solver.

UAT's and CSAR's influcnee were also greater than their market shares might indicate because
of the threat that they would be acquired by another engineenng sofiware firm. UAT's and CSAR's
potential to expand their revenue base, cither alone or with a partner, had been a prime motivation for
MSC to acquire them.

C. Other Evidence Confirms that MSC Will Have Greater Power to Raise Price

After the Acquisitions

The acguisitions’ elimination qf the unique competitive relationship between MSC Nastran,
UAI Nastran. and CSA Nastran is what makes the acquisitions so pernicicus. The elimination of his
compelition will (urce users 1o pay millions of dollars in higher prices. The effect of the acquisitions will
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be o reduce discounting and to eliminate falling prices for advanced Nastran. MSC also will be less

willing to continue offering unlimited site agreements following the acquisilion.

. See CX-2; CX-2278.

The acquisitions also provided MSC with greater ability to charge customers or groups of
customers different prices depending upon their “elasticity of demand.” Prior to the acquisiticns, UAJ
Wastran and C5A Nastran had constrained MSC from raising prices. But now that MSC has been
freed of those competitive constraints it can begin to raise prices across the board or at least to the
more pricf: sensitive customers who can no longer tum to UAT Nastran or CSA Nastran in the event of

a price Increase.

CX-23.

CX-24.

In summary, there is direct evidence, mcluding MSC's, UAD's, and CSAR's own
contemporaneous documents, establishing that these acquisitions will result in the loss of competition to
the detriment of consumers.

d. The Acquisitions Eliminated UAI snd CSAR As Acquisition Candidates for

Other Engineering Software Firms

MSC’s acquisitions had a further anticompetitive effect by eliminating AT and CSAR as
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acquisition targets for other firms who could further expand UAI Nastran’s and CSAR s Nastran's

competitive prosence and make the market even more competitive.

CX-lat M5-0000699.

CX-2 at MS-0000741;

CX-15 at MSC-02 002288,

See CX-2; CX-2278 at MISC-164 000261 ; CX-3 at MS-008634 (

e. Post-Acquisition Evidence Supports MSC’s Increased Exercise of Monopoly
Power As a Result of the Acquisitions

The Commission and courts are cautious in evaluating post-acquisition pricing evidence
because respondents can too casily manipulate prices to avoid the appearance of the exercise of
market power, “Post-acouisition evidence that is subject to manipulation by the party seeking to use it
is entitled to little or no weight.” Hospital Corp. of America v. FTC, 807 F.2d 1381, 1384 (7th Cir.
12863 (Posner, 1.), cert. denied, 481 U5, 1038 (1987). Accordingly, the “Commission . . . was not
required to take account of a post-acquisition transaction that may have been made 1o improve
Hospital Corporation’s litigating position.” Zd at 1384; see B.F. Geodrich Co., 116 ET.C. 207, 340-
41 (1988); see also United States v. General Dynamics Corp., 413 U.S. 4806, 504-05 (1974),

While MSC has had an meentive t¢ avoid the appearance ol reducing dis:;nunts Of raising
prices during the pendency of the Commission’s investigation and this proceeding. MSC nonetheless

has raised some prices angd eliminated a popular leasing featre -- . First, MSC increased
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prices to those users who had licensed UAI Nastran and CSA Nastran.

CX-1921.

There are numerous other examples wiere MSC has raised prices, redoced
discounts, and discontinued unlimited vsage site license agreements to specific users following the
acyuisitons.

BMoreover, MSC has offercd #*s customers more restrictive licensing lernms since Lhe

acquisitions.

£, MRS’ Acquisitions Satisty All the Elements for Monepolization and
Attempted Monopolization

The acquisitions of UAI and CSAR by MSC satisfies all the elements for monopolization and
attempted monopolization at trial. MSC's dominant market shares prior to and afier the acquisitions
satisfy the showing required for monopoly power and the dangerous probability of success. Moreover,
MSC acted willfully and with the specific intent to obtain and maintain 2 monopoly in the market for
advanced versions of Nasiran when it made the scquisitions, |

MSC acquired UAL and CSAR both to eliminate UAL and CSAR a8 competitors and to

remove them as acquisition targets for other firns who might make UAT and CSAR even more
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formidable competitors. See CX-20; CX-14 at MS-00002031 and 00002036,

. See CX-1; CX-2.

Pema IH at 224, 239 (CX-
1505).
X3 at MS-008634. : See 1914 at MS-
0056599,

B. The Relevant Market Is Insulated from New Entry

The analysis of the conditions of new entry into a relevant market is part of a determination of
the hikely anticompetitive effects of any acquisition, because if entry is unlikely, the merged entity can
rTaise prices without attracting new competition. See Staples, 970 F.Supp. at 1086. In assessing the
conditions of entry, the ultimate issue is whether entry is so easy that it "would likely avert
anticompetitive effects from [the] acquisition . . . ." United Stares v. Baker Hughes, Inc., 908 F.2d
931, 989 {D.C. Cir. 1950).

The Merger Guidelines articulate the conditions under which entry would likely avert
anticompetitive pricing, Entry is considered "easy" if it would be "timely, likely and sufficient in its

magnitade, character and scope to deter or counteract the [antilcompetitive cffects” of a proposed
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transaction. Merger Guidelines, § 3.0, guated with approval, Rebel Oil Co., Inc. v. Atlantic
Richfield Co., 31 F.3d 1421, 1440 (9th Cir.), cent. denied, 116 8. Ct. 515 {1995). Eniry is timely if
a new entrant would have a significant market impact within two years. Merger Guidelines, § 3.2
Entry is likely if it would be profitable at premerger prices. 14 at § 3.3, Entry is sufficicnt if it would be
on a large enough scale to counteract the anticompetitive effects of the transaction. Jd at § 3.4,
There is ne entry that would be timely, Ekﬂly and sufficient in its magnitude, character and scope

to deter or counteract the anticompetitive effccts of Respondent’s acquisitions of UAI and CSAR.

See CX-3.
CX-2365.
Additionally, entry 1s further impeded by MSC’s own recent program
. dee CX-25;

Dcp. at 206.

. &ince the market is marture and not expanding, any new entrant must obtain some existmg
customers to build its business and cannot rely upen enly new customers.
MSC is likely to focus its entry arguments on the possible emergence of Al Nastran, a new
Wastran being developed by Drs. Harry Schaeffer and Richard MacNeal, one of the former founders
of MSC. Drs. Schaeffer and MacNeal have jomed their efforts with ANSYS (o offer AI Nastran. The
possible emergence of Al Nastran, however, will not constrain MSC’s exercise of market power for a

long time, if ever.



While Dr. Schasfier has had an miterest n offering an advanced version of Nastran since

learning of MSC's acquisitions over three years ago,

. In view of many years of development of the advanced versions of Nastran offered
by MSC, UAL and CSAR, for many more years, if
CYEL.

C, MSC Will Fail To Show that the Acgrisitions Will Enhance Competition by Producing

Cognizable Efficiencics

The Commission considers appropriate efficiencies in evaluating a merger's likely competitive
effect. Merger Guidelines, § 4.0. A respondent must show that competition will not be adversely
affected by the merger. It is not enough for a respondent to show cost savings resulting from the
acquisitions. *[Ghven the high concentration levels, the court must undertake a rigorous analysis of the
iinds of cfficiencies being urged by the parties in order to cnzurc that thosc ‘efficiencies’ represent
more than mere speculation and promises about post-merger behavior.” Heinz, 246 F3d at 721.
Moreover, “[s)fficienciss almost never fustify 2 merger to monopoly or neat-monopoly.” Mearger
Guidelines § 4.

Respondent claims that the acquisitions are justified primarily by efficiencies gained from
retention and employment of  former developers of UATand CSAR{  fromUAfand  from
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CSAR). MSC claims that these developers have made a substantial contribution to MSC's
enhancemant of M3C Nastran as well as customer-funded davelopment projects. The evidence,
however, will show that the claimmed efficiencies are not likely to benefit consumers, are speculative, and
can be achieved through means with less dramatic anticompeatitive effect than MSC's acquisitions, Aé a
resnlt, efficiencies are not & defense to the anticomnpetitive effects likely to result from these acquisitions.
See University Health, Inc., 938 F.2d at 1222,

Here, Respondent’s purported cost savings cannot be credited for three distinet ressons. First,
they will not overcome th?: injury to competition resuliing from these acquisitions. Indeed, these
acguisitions constitute 4 merger to monepely, Without the competitive rivalry provided by UAT and
CSAR, the forces have been lost that have driven MSC to lower its prices and to be more
responsiveness to customers’ Nastran development needs. See United States v. United Tote, Ine.,

768 F. Supp. 1084, 1084-385 (D Del. 1991) (rejecting efficiancy defense in merger to duopoly;

efficiencies Insufficient to outweigh the loss of competition since "even if the merger resulted in efficiency
gaing, there are no guarantees that these savings would be passed on to the consuming public.”);

Merger Guidelines, § 4.0+

second, Respondent has not adequately quantified the claimed efficiencies. MSC had stated
during the Commission’s investigation that it had not undertaken any studies or analyses of its
efficiencies. See CX-1405. MSC’s claimed efficiency is that it has employed former UAI and
CSAR's developers. This compares to over  total developers working at MSC. Moreover,
Respondent has not sought to show, as it cannot, an inerease 10 the total industry output of advanced

Nastran enhancements and development over the level of enhancements end development occurting if
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MSC, UAT, and CSAR had remained independent or been acquired by another firm. Rather.
Respondent’s urguments are merely litigation-driven, unfounded claims that should be viewed with
consideruble suspicion. Becuuse efliciencies are difficult to verify and quantify, the wle that efficiencies
play in merger analysis has been carefully circumscribed. Speculative claims are not countenanced.
Mereer Guidelines, § 4.0.

Third, Respondant must also show that the efficiencies are specific te the acquisitions and
“oniikely to he accomplished m the absence of either the proposed merger or another means having
cnmpam-hie anticompetitive effects.” Merger Guidelines, § 4.0. Respondent’s efficiency claims fail
because any cost savings they attribute to the acquisitions can be achieved through other means that do
not adversely atfect competition. MSC had other ways of obtaining developers, including sceking to
hire from other sources or even from 1TAT and CSAR, murning to overseas developers, or making other
acquisitions that are not anticompetitive. 1t alsa could have taken greater steps to retain its own
employees. Indeed, since 1995 MSC has lost at least 150 employees who worked on MSC Nastran

development or support.
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D. Divestiture of One or More Perpetual, Royalty-Free Licenses to the Current

Advanced Version of MSC Nastran Is Needed to Restore the Competition that ¥Would

Have Occurred But For the Acgnisitions

The purpose of a remedy 1n an antitrust merger case is to restore compettion. Moreover, the
Commission has “wide discretion™ in its choice of ap antitrust remedy. See Atlantic Refining Co. v.
FTC, 381 U.S. 357, 376 (19G5). Once the Court finds Respondent’s acguisitions of LTAI and CSAR
10 be unlawlul under Section 7 of the Clayton Act and Section 5 of the FTC Act, all doults as to the
remedy are to be resolved in the government’s favor. Unired States v. E. I du Pont De Nemours
and Ce., 366 U.5. 316, 334 (1961). For violations of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, divesliture is the
[avored remedy because it “is simple, relatively easy to administer, and sure.” Inited States v. E.I du
Font De Nemonrs and Co., 366 1.5, 310, 329-31 (1961}, Divestilzre of assets beyund those
aeyuired may be required in order ta put the new competitor “in the same relative competitive
position” ux the acyuired Tirm. Diah Public Serv. Comm. v. B Paso Natural Gus Co., 395 11.8.

464, 470 (1969} (emphasis added).

The remedy needed in this matter is the licensing of MSC Nastran on a royalty-free, perpelual
basis Lo at teast one and possibly two acquirers. The remedy “is simple, relatively easy 1o adminisier,
and sure.” United States v. E.I du Pont De Nemours and Ca., 366 1.8, 316, 328-31 (1961). 1
holds the best promise for restoring a competitive market where the rivalry among the advanced
Nastran suppliers (including the threat that UAI and CSAR would become more formidabile
competitors if acquired by another firmy were pushing prices lower and leading 10 active further

develapment of Nastran to meet an ever growing need among customers for further enhancements.

Licensing of MSC Nastran is necessary because merely requiring MSC to turn over the
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acquired UAT and CSAR software to newcomers is not sufficient to restore competition that existed
and would have evolved but for M3C’s acquisitions. The UAI and CSA Nastran codes 2re now omt
of date and no Jonper options te restore competition. MSC rerminated all development work on UAIT
INastran and CSA Nastran as of the date of the acquisitiens; these codes have now been surpassed by
three-years of added development to MSC Nastrapn. MSC bas released two versions of MSC

Nastran since the UAT acquisitions and the most recent was a major release. Moreover, MSC is likely
to make further releases of MSC Nastran before this proceading is concluded that mﬁy require further
technology o be divested. Providing prospective acquirers with only the out-of-date UAT and CSAR
codes 18 not a remedy in these circumstances.

UAI and C5A Nastran codes have also lost any competitive advantages that they might have
amjoved with features not previously available in MSC Nastran,  Sinee the acquisitions, MSC has
added to MSC Nastran many of the previoosly unique fearures of UAI Nastran and C5A Nastran.
Moraover, MSC has shifted nearly all fonmer UAT and CSA Nastran users over to MSC Nastran.
Users are now reluctant to switch back because UAT Nastran and CSA Nastran are out of date and
laclang unigue featvres and functions.

That UAI Nastran and CSA Nastran are no longer viable codes for restoring competition was

confirmed by
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(CX-2274). agrees with the expert economic testimony that Complaint Counsel will present
at trzal addressing the need for royalty free licensing of the M3C Mastran as the appropniate remedy in
this matter.

The remedy must alse remove any impediments that the prospective acquirers would face in
scouring customers based upon MSCs . As nated above,
MSC has climinated

See CX-25; Dep. at 206.

MSC must also be ordered to rescind all paid-up licenses entered into after the acquisition
where the customers wishes to switch to another Nastran supplier. Any recision procedure must also
cnsure that no customer wishing t%; switch incurs any financial 1053 of its entire paid up license fee. No

custemer is likely willing to switch to a new Nastran supplierif it must pay again for its license,

Omce o customer has sunk its money into & paid up license, it likely will only
switch to a new advanced Nastran if the price 15 at or below the cost of the annual maintenunce paid to
MSC. To correct this prospective financial disincentive for switching, MSC must provide a
“portability” system where the customer can carry part of its former paid-up license payment te any
new Nastran suppliers.

Additionally, the remedial order, at 2 minimuin, needs to include the. -:;u"stijmary provisions
contained in any Comruission divestitore orders, including access to MSC developers, other technical

employees, and sales personnel; customer names and information; sharing the pipeline of new
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enhancements under development; and interfaces with complementary software.

MSC will argue that royalty-free, perpetual licenses tor MSC Nastran and the availability of
contract recision without financial penalty to the customer are excessive measures and beyond the
needs (o restore the competition that would have existed but for the acquisitions. MSC’s argument
ignores the public interest. The foregoing remedial measures best assures that competition is restored
and the public interest protected. Respondent was well aware that the acquisitions would clininate
competition and that UATL and USAR could become even more formidable competitors if acouired by
other firms. Thus, it must accept the risk for its conduct rather than the public. The restoration of
competition should not be jeopardized by a possible incomplete divestiture package or cut short by

contracting practices

CONCLUSION

MSC’s acquisitions of UAL and CSAR may be substantially to less competition or te tend to
inonepoly in viclation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act and Section 5 of the FTC Act.. Requiring MSC
to license MSC Nastran and allewing customers to 1escind paid-up licenses are remedial provisions

needed to restore immediately the competition that would have accurred but for the acquisitions. Cther

relief should also be orderett us necessary.

P peceet [Y1lar fu, 2
P. Abbott McCartney "
Pepay D, Bayer
Michael G. Cowie

EentE. Cox
Andrew J. Heimert

34



Earen A, Mills

Nancy Park

Patnick 1. Koach

Counsel Supporting the Complaint
Burezsu of Competition

Federal Trade Commission
Washington, D.C, 20580

(202) 326-2695

Facsimile (202) 326-3496

Dated: June 14, 2002 (Public Version June 20, 2002)

35



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This is o certify that on June 20, 2002, I caused a capy of Complaint Counszl’s Pre-Trial Bref

{Public Version) to be served on the following persons:

The Honorable D, Michagl Chappel!
Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NJW,
Washmegton, DC 20530

Tefft W, Smith, Esquire

Manmichael . Skubel, Esquire
KIRKLAND & ELLIS

655 Fifteenth Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20003

{202) 879-5034

Fax {202) 879-3200

Counsel for M5C.Software Corporation

P. W//'fﬁ(éq&éﬁ’g/
WV

P. Abbott McCartney



